
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

September 17, 2014 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime 8
Warrants

Accounts Payable 11
Lucero Market - Determination of Public Convenience or
Necessity for the Sale of Beer and Wine for Off-Site
Consumption (Type 20 License)

Staff Report - Lucero Market - PNC Determination 24
Final Rendering of Kerman Inn Mural

Staff Report - Kerman Inn Mural Rendering 30
Update on Ongoing Projects

Staff Report - Update on Ongoing Projects 32

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, October 1, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  
Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

None 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: September 17, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: August 31, 2014 - September 13, 2014: 120,712.67; Overtime: 
$13,729.30; Standby: $1,118.41; Comp Time Earned: 16.50 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 
1. Nos. 5000-5103: $335,631.74 
2. Excepting: Kerwest Newspapers: #5029 - $360.00; #5081 - $165.00 
 Valley Food Center: #5048 - $60.17 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 

 
 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Lucero Market - Determination of Public Convenience or Necessity for the Sale 
of Beer and Wine for Off-Site Consumption (Type 20 License) (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopts resolution determining that the 
granting of a Type 20 off-sale alcohol license for Lucero Market would (or would not) 
serve a public convenience or necessity and authorize the City Manager/Director of 
Planning and Development to complete and submit Form 245 to the Department of 
Alcoholic and Beverage Control. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Lucero Market - PNC Determination 
 
 

3



B. SUBJECT: Final Rendering of Kerman Inn Mural (PG) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: City Council review and approve the final rendering of the Kerman 
Inn Mural Project. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Kerman Inn Mural Rendering 
 

C. SUBJECT: Update on Ongoing Projects (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council receives update on ongoing projects. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Update on Ongoing Projects 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Candidate Meet and Greet - Wednesday, October 8, 7:00 p.m., Community Teen Center 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 
None 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, September 17, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 
Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN), Wilcox (DW)  
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works 
Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order 6:35 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 
except DW 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
RD/BN (4-0-1) 
DW 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Introduction and Swearing In of Level I Reserve Officer Anthony Chacon (JKB) Performed 

B. Presentation of Fresno County Consolidated Plan for Program Years 2015-19  Presented - 
Kristi Johnson 
Ivette Quiroga 
 
7:00 p.m. DW 
arrived 

C. Proclamation Declaring October 19 - 25, 2014 as "Freedom from Workplace 
Bullies Week" (MR) 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL  

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
Payroll Report: August 17, 2014 - August 30, 2014: $121,213.18; Retro Pay: 
$5,466.04; Overtime: $2,113.23; Standby: $1,016.49: Uniform Pay: $5,891.68 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 

Approved 
RD/BN 
excepting 
21543 (5-0-0) 
 

 

 
 

 

5



C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 21489-21549: $583,746.40 
2. Excepting Valley Food Center #21543 - $58.60 
3. Electronic Bank Transfers $41,267.08 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208)r 

 

 
Approved 
21543 DW/NF 
(4-0-1) GY  

 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution for Release of Deferment Agreement for Kenneson 
Farms, Inc. (GH) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution releasing certain 
parcels from the requirements of a Development Agreement. 

Res 14-56 

E. SUBJECT: Local Transportation Funds and State Transportation Assistance 
Funds from the Fresno Council of Governments (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only.  

F. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending August 31, 2014 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. SUBJECT: CDBG Application for Soroptimist Park Restrooms (Fiscal Year 
2015-2016) (GH) 

Open/Closed 
PH Approved 
DW/NF (5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council take the following action:  

1. Open the public hearing, solicit public input, close the public hearing; and 

2. Adopt by motion resolution authorizing the submission of an application 
for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds for the 
installation of restrooms at Soroptimist Park. 

 

Res 14-57 

3. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Selection of Improvement Alternative for Vineland Avenue Widening 
Project (GH) 

Approved #2 
DW/RD (5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council select design No. 2 for the Vineland Avenue 
Widening Project. 

 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Adopting General Fund Reserve Policy (LP) Approved as 
amended 
DW/BN (5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution establishing 
General Fund Reserve Policy. 
 

 
Res 14-58 

6



4. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

5. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

6. CLOSED SESSION None 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN  

7. ADJOURNMENT Approved 
RD/NF  
7:47 p.m. 

 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 
 

I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date above 

written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 
 

         Date: September 18, 2014 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

 

 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



    
 
 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary K. Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Bill Nijjer                   Nathan Fox 

 DEPARTMENT:  PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2014

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: Lucero Market - Determination of Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN Determination) for the sale of 

beer and wine for off-site consumption (Type 20 License) 

RECOMMENDATION   
 
Council by motion adopts resolution determining that the granting of a Type 20 off-sale alcohol license for Lucero 
Market would (or would not) serve a public convenience or necessity and authorize the City Manager/Director of 
Planning and Development to complete and submit Form 245 to the Department of Alcoholic and Beverage Control.. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Lucero Market located at 651 S. Madera Avenue has been conducting business in the downtown since April 2007. 
The owner (Mohsinhussein Abdulgalil Fadhl) has applied for a Type 20 License with the Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control (ABC) for the sale of beer and wine for off-site consumption. ABC has determined that the City of 
Kerman must make a determination of public convenience or necessity (PCN Determination) prior to the issuance of 
the license to Lucero Market. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES   
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION   
Lucero Market is located in the Kerman downtown district on Madera Avenue. As reflected in the aerial map in 
Attachment ‘A’, the market is bordered by commercial to the north and south and east of the site and residential to 
the west. Lucero Market has been in business since April 2007, primarily as a meat market and convenience store. 
The owner would like to expand its services by offering beer and wine sales. 
 
Lucero Market has applied for a Type 20 license from the State Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) for 
the sale of beer and wine for off-site consumption. As reported on Form 245 enclosed herein as Attachment ‘B’, ABC 
noted that there are currently seven (7) Type 20 off-sale licenses allowed in Census Tract 40.1, and the number of 
Type 20 off-sale licenses existing in Census Tract 40.1 is nine (9). The license requested by Lucero Market would 
increase the number of licenses to ten (10) within the census tract. 

24



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 6 
PCN Determination – Lucero Market (Type 20 ABC License) 
 
Pursuant to Sections 23958 and 23958.9 of the Business and Professions Code, ABC is required to notify the local 
jurisdiction that an "over-concentration” of similar retail alcohol licenses exists within a given census tract and 
requests that the City make a determination that a public convenience or necessity would be served by the issuance 
of an off-sale alcohol license prior to issuance of a license by ABC. Otherwise, ABC can deny the application in 
accordance with state law. 

Should the City Council wish to make a determination that a public necessity would be served by the granting of a 
retail license to Lucero Market, the following findings may be considered: 

1. The sale of beer and wine would serve a public convenience. The Lucero Market is located within an existing 
downtown business district that features a variety of businesses that serve the general community. 

2. The proposed beer and wine sales would be incidental to the business. Lucero Market is primarily a meat 
market. The sale of pre-packed food items and soft drinks including beer and wine would provide a public 
convenience for customers. 

3. The applicant has not operated a licensed establishment which has been the subject of verified complaints, 
or violations regarding alcohol, public safety or nuisance statues or regulations. The business is not located 
in a high crime area. 

4. The proposed addition of a beer and wine sales would stimulate economic activity by generating property 
and sales tax revenues and allow the business to sell convenience food and beverage items including the 
sale of beer and wine. 

ABC requires the applicant to conspicuously post a notice on the premises that an alcohol license is being requested 
and a notice must be mailed to any adjoining churches, schools, or residents. As of the date of this report, staff has 
not received any complaints or concerns from surrounding property owners or members of the public as part of the 
mandatory noticing requirement. 

FISCAL IMPACT  

None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING   
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Location Map 
B. ABC Form 245 
C. Resolution 

25



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 6 
PCN Determination – Lucero Market (Type 20 ABC License) 
 

Attachment A 
 

Location Map 
Lucero Market in Downtown Business District 

 

26



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 6 
PCN Determination – Lucero Market (Type 20 ABC License) 
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

ABC Form 245 

 

 

27



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 6 
PCN Determination – Lucero Market (Type 20 ABC License) 
 

28



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 6 
PCN Determination – Lucero Market (Type 20 ABC License) 
 

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
DETERMINING THAT THE GRANTING OF A TYPE 20 OFF-SALE ACOHOL LICENSE WOULD (OR WOULD 
NOT) SERVE A PUBLIC CONVENIENCE OR NECESSITY FOR THE LUCERO MARKET (MOHSINHUSSEIN 

ABDULGAILIL FADHL) LOCATED AT 651 S. MADERA AVENUE, KERMAN, CA 93630 
 

WHEREAS, on September 22, 2014 the Planning & Development Services Department received an 
application for a finding of a public convenience or necessity (PCN) from Mohsinhussein Abdulgalil Fadhl (dba: 
Lucero Market) for a Type 20 license for off-sale beer and wine located at 651 S. Madera Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) has determined that there is an 
over-concentration of off-site alcohol sales licenses in the City of Kerman (Census Tract 40.1); and 

WHEREAS, on October 1, 2014 the City Council found and determined that issuance of the proposed off-site 
alcohol sales license would (or would not) serve a public convenience or necessity; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman, based on the staff report and 
evidence received at the public meeting on the mater, the City Council hereby authorizes the Director of Planning and 
Development to submit a letter to ABC stating that the sale of beer and wine would (or would not) serve the public 
convenience. 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 1st day of October 
2014, by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 

  

The forgoing resolution is hereby approved. 

 _____________________________ 
 Gary  
 Mayor 
ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

29



    
 

 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary K. Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER   
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                      Bill Nijer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS AND RECREATION
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2014 

 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks, Recreation and Community Services Department Director 
Subject: Final Rendering of Kerman Inn Mural  

RECOMMENDATION  
 
City Council review and provide input on the  Final Rendering of Kerman Inn Mural Project 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Council approved the Kerman Inn Mural Project at the July 2, 2014 meeting. Staff moved forward with 
commissioning a mural rendering of the Kerman Inn to be placed on the building wall behind the Chamber of 
Commerce facing the Sebastian parking lot. A pencil sketch was presented to various community groups for review 
and comment. The mural rendering will be unveiled at the meeting.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
Sebastian owns the building where the mural is proposed and has been very supportive of the mural concept. Staff 
will continue to move forward with securing formal authorization to place the mural on the wall. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Claudia Fletcher, a Clovis-based artist has completed the final colored rendering of Kerman Inn mural. Claudia was 
the artist who painted the steamboat “gateway” mural located at the north end of Kerman along Madera Avenue and 
the blacksmith shop at the Senior Center. 
 
The proposed Kerman Inn mural was presented to several individuals, community groups including the Council, 
Recreation Commission & Planning Commission. This mural incorporates many of the comments and suggestions 
received during the presentations with various groups and residents.  
 
The mural will be approximately 15’ wide and 28’ in length, depicts the Kerman Inn over time and includes the old 
water tower in the background. An inscription will be located below the mural providing historical context of the 
Kerman Inn. In addition, goose neck lighting will be considered above the mural.  
 
The cost estimate is based on the mural being painted on panels and does not include mounting frame (if required) 
or lighting. This was the preferred method selected by most residents, it costs less and mural can be relocated if 
needed.  

30



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
 
All groups are supportive of the concept. Per approval by the City Council and authorization has been received from 
Sebastian, a fundraising effort will begin to raise money for this project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Funding will be sought through grants, fundraisers and private donations. No funding is requested from the City at 
this time; however the Council may elect to allocate funds towards this project now that the final rendering is 
completed. 
 

31



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2014 

 To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning & Development 
Subject: Update on Ongoing Projects 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council receives update on ongoing projects. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
There are several ongoing projects including some prospective developments that staff is working on. These 
projects are indicative of the growing interest in the City of Kerman. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Staff has prepared an update on ongoing projects, as follows: 
 
Approved Projects 
 

1. Panda Express – The restaurant is expected to open the week of Sept. 29th. Verizon Wireless is the other 
confirmed tenant to anchor the 8,125 sq. ft. commercial building. Three tenant spaces remain available for 
lease. 
 

2. Medical Building – The building and tenant improvements for the dialysis clinic have been approved. 
Construction of the 10,200 sq. ft. building is expected to begin within the next 60 days. The project is located 
in the Kerman Crossing Neighborhood Shopping Center occupied by CVS and AutoZone. 
 

3. Mid Valley Disposal Expansion – Design for phase I is in progress. MVD has no firm start date for the 
project. 
 

Residential Developments 
 

1. Tract 5488 (Boudreaux I) – Twelve finished lots remained in this tract located on S. Michele, Joseph and 
Mathew Avenues north of California Avenue. RM Covington purchased, built and sold five homes. He 
acquired an additional 5 lots this year. Two homes were built and sold. He plans on starting three more 
houses this month. 

32



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
Update on Ongoing Projects 
  

2. Tract 5487 (Pacific Mountain Partners) – RJ Hill is constructing three homes and plans on starting seven 
additional homes for a total of ten homes this summer. There are 105 finished lots remaining in the tract. 
Another Fresno-based builder is in negotiations to purchase the remaining lots. 
 

Capital Projects 
 

1. Whitesbridge & Vineland Traffic Signal – Staff is working on a minor design issue with Caltrans. The 
project is expected to begin construction this fall. 
 

2. Goldenrod & California Rail Crossing Upgrade – The design is complete. The City is awaiting an 
easement for some ROW from UPRR. Once the ROW is acquired the project can commence construction. 
 

3. Katey’s Kids Nature Park – Installation of landscaping is ongoing. However, the restroom and playground 
installation is delayed due to a change in HUD’s eligibility criteria. The County filed a waiver and the City has 
requested intervention from Congressman Valadao and Costa. No word on the waiver. The completion of the 
park will be delayed beyond the October completion date. 
 

4. Water Meter Project (Phase II) – On Sept. 3rd, the Council approved the sub-agreement for the $724,000 
Prop. 84 grant to install approximately 665 residential water meters. The City will provide a match of 
$241,000 for a total of $965,000. The project will be bid next year. In Phase I, the City installed 1,725 water 
meters on all residential units built after 1992. There are 1,350 residential units that require meters. The City 
has until 2025 to complete meter installations. 
 

5. Jensen/Madera Avenues Roundabout – The project is expected to be completed in October. Staff met with 
Caltrans to discuss placing a gateway monument sign in the roundabout. Caltrans was supportive of the 
idea. Staff will discuss design and costs with Council for possible inclusion in next year’s budget if feasible. 
 

Comprehensive Planning 
 

1. Housing Element – On Sept. 10th, a “kick-off” meeting was held for the preparation of a Multi-Jurisdictional 
Housing Element with the County of Fresno and 13 cities (excluding Fresno, Orange Cove and Firebaugh). 
The project consultant, Mintier Harnish will begin work on the housing element in October. The Housing 
Element is due to the state by December 31, 2015. 
 

2. Sphere of Influence Boundary Change – On Sept. 16th, staff mailed a letter to the County CAO requesting 
an amendment to the Tax Sharing MOU to include the City’s adopted SOI and requested that the matter be 
presented to the Board of Supervisors for consideration. Staff hopes to be before the BOS within the next 60 
to 90 days. 
 

Prospective Projects 
 

1. Tractor Sales & Repair – An existing tractor sales and repairs business located in the County continues to 
evaluate relocating on a 3.56 acre site in the Kerman industrial area. 
 

2. Small Retail Project – A master site plan was submitted for Phase II of the Kerman Crossing retail center 
located west of Kline Street. The plan includes five separate buildings totaling 29,753 sq. ft. For now, a 2,588 
sq. ft. building will be a fast food restaurant and a 3,800 sq. ft. building will be a convenient store with car 
wash and fueling islands. No known tenants for the other three buildings. 

33



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
Update on Ongoing Projects 
  

3. Senior Housing Project – A developer is exploring the possibility of building a 58 unit senior housing project 
on a vacant 4.5 acres located at the NEC of Siskiyou and Gateway. This property is zoned neighborhood 
commercial and will require a zone change. The developer is expected to present the proposed project to the 
Planning Commission in October for preliminary input. 
 

4. 29 Acre Regional Commercial – A developer plans on proceeding with a specific plan for the development 
of the 29 acre regional commercial vacant property west of Walmart. Submittal of a conceptual plan for the 
site is expected within the next 20 to 45 days. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT  

 
None. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING  

  
None. 

 
Attachments: 
 

A. None 

34


	Agenda
	Minutes
	September 17, 2014

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Lucero Market - Determination of Public Convenience or Necessity for the Sale of Beer and Wine for Off-Site Consumption (Type 20 License)
	Staff Report - Lucero Market - PNC Determination

	Final Rendering of Kerman Inn Mural
	Staff Report - Kerman Inn Mural Rendering

	Update on Ongoing Projects
	Staff Report - Update on Ongoing Projects


